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PHILIP D. STERN & ASSOCIATES, LLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
697 Valley Street, Suite 2d 
Maplewood, NJ 07040 
(973) 379-7500 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Brandilyn Alexander 

 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 
 

 
BRANDILYN ALEXANDER, individually 
and on behalf of all those similarly 
situated, 
Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
NEW JERSEY AUTOMOTIVE ACCOUNT 
MANAGEMENT CO., INC., also known 
as AMR ASSOCIATES, 
Defendant 
 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

 
Plaintiff, Brandilyn Alexander (“ALEXANDER”), individually and 

on behalf of all others similarly situated, by way of Complaint against 
Defendant, New Jersey Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. (also 
known as “AMR Associates”) (“NJAAM”), says: 

I. NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This action stems from the NJAAM’s violations of the Fair Debt 
Collection Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. 

II. PARTIES 

2. ALEXANDER is a natural person. 

3. At all times relevant to the factual allegations of this Complaint, 
ALEXANDER was a citizen of the State of New Jersey, residing in 
Middlesex County, New Jersey. 

4. At all times relevant to the factual allegations of this Complaint, 
NJAAM was a domestic for-profit corporation of the State of New Jersey 
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formed on October 16, 1996. 

5. On information and belief, the principal business location of 
NJAAM, as well as its address for service of process, is in Ocean County, 
New Jersey commonly known as 196 Pinehurst Road, Brick, New Jersey. 

6. Based on an alternate name certification filed with the State of 
New Jersey, on information and belief,  NJAAM is also known as “AMR 
Associates.” 

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7. Jurisdiction of this Court arises under 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d) and 
28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

8. Venue is appropriate in this federal district pursuant to 28 
U.S.C. § 1391 because the events giving rise to ALEXANDER’s claims 
occurred within this federal judicial district, and because NJAAM 
regularly transacts business within this federal judicial district and, 
therefore, resides in the State of New Jersey within the meaning of 28 
U.S.C. § 1391(b) and (c). 

IV. LEGAL BASIS FOR FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT CLAIMS 

9. The FDCPA simultaneously advances two objectives: it protects 
vulnerable citizens while promoting a competitive marketplace. 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692(e). 

10. Congress adopted the FDCPA with the “express purpose to 
eliminate abusive debt collection practices by debt collectors, and to 
insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive debt 
collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged.” Jerman v. 
Carlisle, McNellie, Rini, Kramer & Ulrich LPA, 559 U.S. ___, 130 S. Ct. 1605, 
1623, 176 L. Ed. 2d 519 (2010) (internal quotes and ellipsis omitted). 
“Congress explained that the purpose of the Act was not only to eliminate 
abusive debt collection practices, but also to ‘insure that those debt 
collectors who refrain from using abusive debt collection practices are not 
competitively disadvantaged.’” Lesher v. Law Offices of Mitchell N. Kay, 
P.C., 650 F.3d 993, 996 (3d Cir. 2011). 

11. Congress had found abundant evidence of abusive, deceptive, 
and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors contributed 
to the number of personal bankruptcies, marital instability, loss of jobs, 
and invasions of individual privacy. 15 U.S.C. § 1692(a). It also found 
that existing consumer protection laws were inadequate. 15 U.S.C. 
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§ 1692(b). Therefore, “Congress gave consumers a private cause of action 
against debt collectors who fail to comply with the Act.” Lesher, 650 F.3d 
at 997.  

12. Thus, the intended effect of these private enforcement actions 
was not only to reduce the number of personal bankruptcies, marital 
instability, loss of jobs, and invasions of individual privacy caused by 
abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices but, 
simultaneously, to promote a competitive marketplace for those debt 
collectors who voluntarily treat consumers with honesty and respect. 

13.  “Congress recognized that ‘the vast majority of consumers who 
obtain credit fully intend to repay their debts. When default occurs, it is 
nearly always due to an unforeseen event such as unemployment, 
overextension, serious illness or marital difficulties or divorce.’” FTC v. 
Check Investors, Inc., 502 F.3d 159, 165 (3d Cir. 2007). Nevertheless, “‘[a] 
basic tenet of the Act is that all consumers, even those who have 
mismanaged their financial affairs resulting in default on their debt, deserve 
‘the right to be treated in a reasonable and civil manner.’” FTC, supra, 502 
F.3d at 165 (emphasis added) quoting Bass v. Stolper, Koritzinsky, Brewster 
& Neider, S.C., 111 F.3d 1322, 1324 (7th Cir. 1997). 

14. The FDCPA is construed broadly so as to effectuate its remedial 
purposes and a debt collector’s conduct is judged from the standpoint of 
the “least sophisticated consumer,” Brown v. Card Serv. Ctr, 464 F.3d 450, 
453n1 (3d Cir. 2006). “In order to prevail, it is not necessary for a 
plaintiff to show that she herself was confused by the communication she 
received; it is sufficient for a plaintiff to demonstrate that the least 
sophisticated consumer would be confused. In this way, the FDCPA enlists 
the efforts of sophisticated consumers like Jacobson as ‘private attorneys 
general’ to aid their less sophisticated counterparts, who are unlikely 
themselves to bring suit under the Act, but who are assumed by the Act to 
benefit from the deterrent effect of civil actions brought by others.” 
Jacobson v. Healthcare Fin. Services, Inc., 516 F.3d 85, 91 (2d Cir. 2008). 
Thus, “the FDCPA protects all consumers, the gullible as well as the 
shrewd.” Clomon v. Jackson, 988 F.2d 1314, 1318 (2d Cir. 1993). 

15. Except where the Act expressly requires knowledge or intent, 
the “FDCPA is a strict liability statute to the extent it imposes liability 
without proof of an intentional violation,” Allen ex rel. Martin v. LaSalle 
Bank, N.A., 629 F.3d 364, 368 (3d Cir. 2011) (citing, in footnote 7, 
supporting authorities from the Second, Seventh, Ninth and Eleventh 
Circuits). 
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16. To prohibit deceptive practices, the FDCPA, at 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692e, provides that a debt collector may not use any false, deceptive, 
or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection 
of any debt and, without limiting the generality of the prohibited 
conduct, enumerates sixteen acts and omissions which are deemed to be 
per se violations of that section. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(1)-(16). That list 
includes: 

16.01. Using any false representation or deceptive means to collect 
or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information 
concerning a consumer, 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10). 

17. To eliminate abusive debt collection practices, the FDCPA, at 
15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a) sets forth guidelines for written notice to a 
consumer including: 

17.01. “a statement that if the consumer notifies the debt collector 
in writing within the thirty-day period that the debt, or any 
portion thereof, is disputed, the debt collector will obtain 
verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment against the 
consumer and a copy of such verification or judgment will 
be mailed to the consumer by the debt collector,” 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692g(a)(4) (emphasis added); and 

17.02. “a statement that, upon the consumer’s written request 
within the thirty-day period, the debt collector will provide 
the consumer with the name and address of the original 
creditor, if different from the current creditor,” 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692g(a)(5) (emphasis added). 

18. Liability under the FDCPA is excused only when a debt collector 
establishes, as an affirmative defense, the illegal conduct was either “not 
intentional and resulted from a bona fide error notwithstanding the 
maintenance of procedures reasonably adapted to avoid any such error,” 
15 U.S.C. § 1692k(c), or an “act done or omitted in good faith in 
conformity with any advisory opinion of the” Federal Trade Commission, 
16 U.S.C. § 1692k(e). Thus, common law privileges and immunities are 
not available to absolve a debt collector from liability under the FDCPA. 
See, Heintz v. Jenkins, 514 U.S. 21, (1995); Allen ex rel. Martin v. LaSalle 
Bank, N.A., 629 F.3d 364, 369 (3rd Cir. 2011); and Sayyed v. Wolpoff & 
Abramson, 485 F. 3d 236, 232-233 (4th Cir. 2007). 

19. Liability under the FDCPA arises upon the showing of a single 
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violation. Taylor v. Perrin, Landry, deLaunay & Durand, 103 F.3d 1232, 
1238 (5th Cir. 1997); Bentley v. Great Lakes Collection Bureau, 6 F.3d 60, 
62-3 (2d Cir. 1993). 

20. A debt collector who violates any provision of the FDCPA is 
liable for any actual damages, “additional damages” (also called 
“statutory damages”), and attorney’s fees and costs. 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a).  
“[T]he FDCPA permits and encourages parties who have suffered no loss 
to bring civil actions for statutory violations.” Jacobson, supra, 516 F.3d at 
96. 

21. ALEXANDER, individually and on behalf of all those similarly 
situated seeks statutory damages, attorney fees, and costs pursuant to the 
FDCPA. 

V. FACTS 

22. Sometime prior to October 7, 2011, ALEXANDER is alleged to 
have incurred a financial obligation (“Debt”) to Route 22 Toyota in 
connection with her purchase of a car for her personal use. 

23. The Debt is alleged to arise from one or more transactions. 

24. NJAAM is regularly engaged in the collection of debts. 

25. The principal purpose of NJAAM is the collection of debts and 
it uses the mails, telephone, the internet and other instruments of 
interstate commerce. 

26. NJAAM contends that the Debt is in default. 

27. The Debt was placed with, obtained by or assigned to NJAAM 
for the purpose of collecting or attempting to collect the Debt. 

28. The Debt was in default or alleged to be in default at the time it 
was placed with, obtained by or assigned to NJAAM. 

29. In an attempt to collect the Debt, NJAAM sent ALEXANDER a 
letter dated October 7, 2011 (“LETTER”). 

30. A true and correct copy of the LETTER is attached as Exhibit 1. 

31. The LETTER appears to be a mass-produced form letter.  
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VI. POLICIES AND PRACTICES COMPLAINED OF 

32. It is the Defendant’s policy and practice to send written 
collection communications, in the form attached as Exhibit 1, in 
connection with the collection of alleged consumer debts, which make 
false, deceptive, and misleading representations in violation of the 
FDCPA. 

33. Such policy and practice is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 
§§ 1692e(10), 1692g(a)(4), and 1692g(a)(5). 

VII. CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

34. ALEXANDER brings this action individually and as a class 
action on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to 
Fed. R. Civ. P. 23. 

35. Excluding persons who, prior to the date this action is certified 
to proceed as a class action, either died, obtained a discharge in 
bankruptcy, or signed a general release of claims against Defendant, the 
“Class” consists of: 

Each natural person to whom Defendant, New Jersey 
Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. (also known as 
“AMR Associates”) mailed a letter to a New Jersey address 
in connection with its attempt to collect financial 
obligations due or allegedly due a New Jersey automobile 
dealership which letter (a) was dated on or between the 
date which is within one year prior to the filing of this 
Complaint and the date on which Defendant will be served 
with process, (b) was not returned by the Postal Service as 
undeliverable, and (c) failed to include either:: 

a statement that if the addressee notified New Jersey 
Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. in writing 
within thirty days after receipt of the letter that the 
debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed, New Jersey 
Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. would 
obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a 
judgment against the addressee and a copy of such 
verification or judgment will be mailed to the 
addressee by New Jersey Automotive Account 
Management Co., Inc. 
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OR 

a statement that, upon the addressee’s written request 
within thirty days after receipt of the letter, New 
Jersey Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. 
would provide the addressee with the name and 
address of the original creditor, if different from the 
current creditor. 

36. The “Class Claims” consist of all claims arising from a person’s 
receipt of a letter from NJAAM in connection with its attempt to collect a 
debt which included the following language or substantially similar 
language: 

a statement that if the addressee notified New Jersey Automotive 
Account Management Co., Inc. in writing within thirty days after 
receipt of the letter that the debt, or any portion thereof, is 
disputed, New Jersey Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. 
would obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment 
against the addressee and a copy of such verification or judgment 
will be mailed to the addressee by New Jersey Automotive Account 
Management Co., Inc. 

OR 

a statement that, upon the addressee’s written request within thirty 
days after receipt of the letter, New Jersey Automotive Account 
Management Co., Inc. would provide the addressee with the name 
and address of the original creditor, if different from the current 
creditor. 

37. The identity of each member of the Class is readily 
ascertainable from NJAAM’s records and those records of the entity on 
whose behalf NJAAM was seeking to collect debts. 

38. ALEXANDER’s claims are typical of the class members, as all 
are based upon the same facts and legal theories. 

39. This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, 
as a class action pursuant to the provisions of Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a) 
because there is a well-defined community interest in the litigation in 
that: 

40. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that 
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the members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members 
would be impractical. On information and belief, there are more than 40 
members of the Class. 

41. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the 
Class, the principal issues are whether Defendant’s written 
communications to consumers, in the form attached as Exhibit 1, violates 
15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e(10), 1692g(a)(4), and 1692g(a)(5). 

42. ALEXANDER’s claims are typical of the claims of the class 
members. ALEXANDER and all members of the Class have claims arising 
out of the NJAAM’s common and uniform course of conduct with respect 
to NJAAM’s written communications to consumers in the form attached 
as Exhibit 1. 

43. ALEXANDER will fairly and adequately protect the interests of 
the class members insofar as ALEXANDER has no interests that are 
adverse to the absent class members. ALEXANDER is committed to 
vigorously litigating this matter. ALEXANDER has also retained counsel 
experienced in handling consumer lawsuits, complex legal issues, and 
class actions. ALEXANDER and ALEXANDER’s counsel have no interests 
which might cause them not to vigorously pursue the instant class action 
lawsuit. 

44. This action has been brought and may be maintained as a “B1a-
class”, a “B2-class”, a “B3-class”, or a hybrid of any two or all three types. 
Based on discovery and further investigation, Plaintiff will particularize 
the type of class action at the time of the motion for class certification 
and, at this time, alleges: 

44.01. Certification of a class under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(1)(a) is 
appropriate because adjudications with respect to individual 
members create a risk of inconsistent or varying 
adjudications which could establish incompatible standards 
of conduct for NJAAM. 

44.02. Certification of a class under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(2) is 
appropriate in that a determination that NJAAM’s written 
communications to consumers, in the form attached as 
Exhibit 1, violates 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e(10), 1692g(a)(4) and 
1692g(a)(5) is tantamount to declaratory relief and any 
monetary relief under the FDCPA would be merely 
incidental to that determination. 
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44.03. Certification of a class under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) is 
appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to 
members of the Class predominate over any questions 
affecting an individual member, and a class action is 
superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient 
adjudication of the controversy because individual joinder 
of all members would be impracticable, class action 
treatment will permit a large number of similarly situated 
persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum 
efficiently and without unnecessary duplication of effort and 
expense that individual actions would engender, an 
important public interest will be served by addressing the 
matter as a class action, substantial expenses to the litigants 
and to the judicial system will be realized, and difficulties 
are unlikely in the management of a class action. 

45. Based on discovery and further investigation, at the time 
Plaintiff moves for class certification, Plaintiff may seek class certification 
only as to particular issues as permitted under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4). 

VIII. CAUSE OF ACTION FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE FDCPA 

46. ALEXANDER realleges and incorporates by reference the 
allegations in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

47. ALEXANDER is a “consumer” within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692a(3). 

48. NJAAM is a “debt collector” within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692a(6). 

49. The Debt is a “debt” within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. 
§1692a(5). 

50. The LETTER is a “communication” as defined by 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692a(2). 

51. The LETTER was sent by NJAAM to ALEXANDER in an attempt 
to collect the Debt. 

52. NJAAM’s use of the written communication in the form 
attached as Exhibit 1 violated the FDCPA in one or more of the following 
ways: 
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52.01. Using a false representation and/or deceptive means to 
collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain 
information concerning a consumer in violation of 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692e(10); 

52.02. Failing to include in Exhibit 1 “a statement that if the 
consumer notifies the debt collector in writing within the 
thirty-day period that the debt, or any portion thereof, is 
disputed, the debt collector will obtain verification of the 
debt or a copy of a judgment against the consumer and a 
copy of such verification or judgment will be mailed to the 
consumer by the debt collector” in violation of 15 U.S.C. 
§ 1692g(a)(4) (emphasis added); and 

52.03. Failing to include in Exhibit 1 “a statement that, upon the 
consumer’s written request within the thirty-day period, the 
debt collector will provide the consumer with the name and 
address of the original creditor, if different from the current 
creditor” in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692g(a)(5) (emphasis 
added). 

53. Based on any one of those violations, Defendant is liable to 
Plaintiff and the Class for statutory damages, attorney’s fees and costs. 

IX. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

54. WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Brandilyn Alexander, respectfully 
requests that the Court enter judgment against Defendant, New Jersey 
Automotive Account Management Co., Inc. (also known as “AMR 
Associates”), as follows: 

54.01. An order certifying that this matter may be maintained as a 
class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 including defining 
the class, defining the class claims, and appointing 
ALEXANDER as the class representative and the undersigned 
attorney as class counsel; 

54.02. An award of statutory damages for ALEXANDER pursuant to 
15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(B); 

54.03. An award of statutory damages for the Class pursuant to 15 
U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(B); 

54.04. Attorney’s fees, litigation expenses, and costs pursuant to 15 
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U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(B)(3); and 

54.05. For such other and further relief as may be just and proper. 

X. CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO LOCAL CIVIL RULE 

55. Pursuant to L. Civ. R. 11.2, I hereby certify to the best of my 
knowledge that the matter in controversy is not the subject of any other 
action pending in any court or the subject of a pending arbitration 
proceeding, nor is any other action or arbitration proceeding 
contemplated. I further certify that I know of no party, other than 
putative class members, who should be joined in the action at this time. 

 Philip D. Stern & Associates, LLC 
Attorneys for Plaintiff, Brandilyn Alexander 

s/Philip D. Stern 
Dated: January 12, 2012 Philip D. Stern 
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NJ Automotive Accounts Management Co., Inc. 
A.M.R. Associates 

PO Box 1996 - 186 Mantoloking Road, Suite I 
Brick, NJ 08723 

Telephone No. 732-262-3667 Toll Free No. \-866-353-1799 Fax No. 732-262-3350 

Brandilyn O. Alexander 
36 Teaberry Drive 
Edison, NJ 08820 

Re : 
File No .: 
Bas i s o f Cla im : 
Balance Due : 
File Status : 

Dear Brandilyn O. Alexander, 

Rou t e Z2 Toyota 
12222/5036660 
Breac h of Contra~t 
500 . 00 

October 7, 20 11 

Initial Notice and Demand Fo~ Payment 

The above named creditor has assigned to us your account for immediate collection of the ba lance 
in fu ll. 

Please contact this office immediately so that arrangements may be made and any further action 
may be stopped,or send a certified check or money order to the above address. 

You may regard this lctter as both a notice that further action to col lect this debt has 
been taken by our cl ient by transferring this debt to this agency as well as an auempt 
to amicably resolve this matter. 

You can contact us directly at 1-866-353-1799 between 9:00AM and g':OOPM (Monday-Friday). 

Very truly you rs. 

Collections Di vision 

Unless this account or any portion thereof is disputed within 30 days from receipt of this notice, 
we wi ll assume this debt to be valid.lfyou dispute this debt or any portion thereof within this 
30 day time period we wil l fllrni sh at your written request, a verification of this debt, or the 
name and address of the original creditor. This is an attempt to collect a debt. Any infonnation 
obtained will be used for that purpose. Federal Law requires us to advise yell that this is 
communication from a debt collector. 

NJAA M - Letter I 
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� 4 Reinstated or

Reopened
�  5 �  6 Multidistrict

Litigation
� 7

VI.  CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing  (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Brief description of cause:

VII.  REQUESTED IN
        COMPLAINT:

� CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER F.R.C.P. 23

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: � Yes � No

VIII.  RELATED CASE(S)
(See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

             Explanation: 

DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

BRANDILYN ALEXANDER

MIDDLESEX, NJ

Philip D. Stern & Associates, LLC
697 Valley Street, Suite 2d
Maplewood, NJ 07040
973-379-7500 pstern@philipstern.com

NEW JERSEY AUTOMOTIVE ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT
CO., INC., also known as AMR ASSOCIATES

OCEAN, NJ

15 U.S.C. § 1697

Debt Collection abuse.

501,000.00 ✔

01/12/2012 s/Philip D. Stern

✔

(c) Attorney's (Firm Name, Address, Telephone Number and Email Address)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required
by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use
of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint
filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I. (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only
the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving
both name and title.

(b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time
of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land condemnation cases,
the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment)”.

 II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an “X” in one
of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box
1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the
different parties must be checked.  (See Section III below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this section
for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an “X” in the appropriate box.  If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is sufficient
to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerks in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit.  If the cause fits more than one nature of suit, select
the most definitive.

V. Origin.  Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.  When the petition
for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.  When this box
is checked, do not check (5) above.
Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment.  (7) Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause.  Do not cite jurisdictional statutes
unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553

Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers
and the corresponding judge names for such cases. Provide a brief explanation of why the cases are related.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.

Case 3:12-cv-00224-JAP-DEA   Document 1-1    Filed 01/12/12   Page 2 of 2 PageID: 13




